
 Presque Isle City Council Meeting 
Wednesday, September 2nd, 2020 

6:00 PM 
Presque Isle Council Chambers 

 
AGENDA 

 
Roll Call 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Public Hearing 

 
1. Approval of a Marijuana License to Chad Junkins d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location of 

11 Davis Street 
2. A hearing to condemn a dangerous buildings pursuant to M.R.S.A. Title 17§ 2851 owned by: 

Fernand Martin: 23 Turner Street 
     25 Turner Street 
     14 Park Street 
     227 State Street 
Walter Gogan: 74 Exchange Street 

Citizen Comments 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

3. Approve Minutes from August 5, 2020 
4. Approve 2020 Warrants #30 - #33, totaling $1,656,444.03 
5. Approve Transfer Deed 
6. Approve Appointment to the Presque Isle Planning Board 

 
Old Business 

 
7. City Hall Update 
8. Downtown TIF 

 
New Business 

 
9. Traffic Concerns 
10. Greenmark IT – Technology Upgrades 
11. Schedule a Public Hearing for changes to Chapter 59A – Adult Use and Medical Marijuana 

Businesses Ordinance 
12. Five Year Fee Schedule 
13. Capital Improvement Plan 

 
Manager’s Report 

 
Announcements 

 
Executive Session 

 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(A) to discuss Negotiations 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(A) to discuss Negotiations 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate 

 
Adjournment 



 
 

 
 

The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: August 27, 2020 

RE:  September 2nd Council Meeting starting at 6pm, City Council Chambers 
 
Agenda 
 
Roll Call 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Public Hearings:   

1. Approval of a Marijuana License to Chad Junkins d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with 
location of 11 Davis Street: Staff and Planning Board has reviewed application and is 
recommending approval. 

2. A hearing to condemn a dangerous buildings pursuant to M.R.S.A. Title 17§ 2851:  
George Howe, Code Enforcement officer will discuss each property individually and 
offer recommendations.  Narrative of process is included. 

Fernand Martin: 23 Turner Street 
     25 Turner Street 
     14 Park Street 
     227 State Street 
Walter Gogan: 74 Exchange Street 

Citizen Comment 
 
Consent Agenda: Unless council wants to discuss items individually, staff recommends 
approving in one motion.   

3. Approve Minutes from August 5, 2020 
4. Approve 2020 Warrants  
5. Approve Transfer Deed: Approval for City manager to sign deed for Alan Trombley for 

60’ of land at 64 Chapman Road. 
6. Approve Appointment to the Presque Isle Planning Board:  Due to a recent resignation, 

there is a vacancy.  Jayne Farrin (previously served on city boards) has volunteered to 
serve.   

 
Old Business 

7. City Hall Update: Committee continues to meet regularly on design work and layout. 



 
 

 
 

8. Downtown TIF: After months of input from various groups, the plan is ready for final 
review. After any changes are discussed and council is comfortable with the project list 
and plan, a motion for a public hearing at next council meeting is required. 

 
New Business 

 
9. Traffic Concerns: A working group has been discussing traffic concerns throughout the 

city and suggesting multiple approaches of enforcement, data collection, outreach, 
signage and public awareness.   

10. Greenmark IT – Technology Upgrades: Eric Warren will present a plan for various IT 
upgrades to implement in the upcoming months and changes to the capital improvement 
plan.   

11. Schedule a Public Hearing for changes to Chapter 59A – Adult Use and Medical 
Marijuana Businesses Ordinance: Multiple changes are needed to reflect modifications in 
the State laws, expand on definitions and improve clarifications for administrative 
purposes: Staff request a public hearing for next council meeting.  

12. Five Year Fee Schedule: Each year, prior to the budget process, we review the fee 
schedule to see if any changes are needed.  For discussion.  

13. Capital Improvement Plan: The plan will be distributed and later reviewed during the 
budget process, starting next month.   

 
Manager’s Report 

 
Announcements 

 
Executive Session 

 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(A) to discuss Negotiations 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(A) to discuss Negotiations 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate 

 
Adjournment 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 1 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Approval of a Marijuana License to Chad 
Junkins, d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location to 11 

Davis Street (Single Hearing) 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memo from George Howe, dated August 25, 2020 
2) Application 
3) Public Hearing Notice 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to approve a Marijuana License to 
Chad Junkins, d/b/a Northern Euphoria LLC, with location to 
11 Davis Street. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                     Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2770                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

From the desk of: 
George Howe  

Email:  ghowe@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Tom King, City Clerk 
Chelsea Lynds-Beaulieu 

DATE: August 25, 2020 

RE:  Recommendations on Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility 
  

The Presque Isle Code Office has reviewed all documents concerning an application submitted on August 6, 
2020 by owner, Chad Junkins, d/b/a Northern Euphoria, LLC to operate a Medical Marijuana Cultivation 
Facility located at 11 Davis Street. 
 
In addition, all documents were reviewed by Department Heads on August 19, 2020 and all concerns were 
corrected by the owner.  
 
An inspection was performed at 11 Davis Street by the Code Office and was found to be adequate for the use 
intended.  An additional inspection will be performed on the site and a Certificate of Occupancy issued before 
opening to do business as Northern Euphoria, LLC. 
 
This application was also reviewed and approved by the Presque Isle Planning Board on August 20, 2020 as 
required by the Ordinance. Therefore, this application substantially meets the standards of Chapter 59A of 
Presque Isle’s Adult Use and Medical Marijuana Business Ordinance. 

 
 
 
 
 

   
RECOMMENDED:   Motion made by: _________________ Seconded by: ___________________________ 
to issue a license to Chad Junkins operating as Northern Euphoria, LLC to operate a Medical Marijuana 
Cultivation Facility at 11 Davis Street.   

mailto:ghowe@presqueisleme.us






NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE 

LEGAL NOTICE 
NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City 
Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on 
September 2, 2020 at 6:00 PM in the City Council 
Chambers, City Hall at 12 Second Street, to consider a 
Medical Marijuana Cultivation License from:   

Chad Junkins d/b/a Northern Euphoria, LLC
11 Davis Street, Presque Isle

The public may attend the public hearing or submit 
written comments.  You can obtain more information 
by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall,        
12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME 04769 or call at 
760-2720. 
ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special 
assistance at the public hearing due to a disability 
should contact the City of Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 
760-2720 at least two (2) business days prior to the 
meeting date. 

Per City Council 
Thomas C. King, City Clerk 

Published Aug. 26, 2020



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 2 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: TABLED: A hearing to condemn a 
dangerous buildings pursuant to M.R.S.A. Title 17§ 2851 
owned by: 

Fernand Martin – 23 Turner Street 
      25 Turner Street 
      14 Park Street 
      227 State Street 

Walter Gagon – 74 Exchange Street 
  

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memo from George Howe, dated August 12, 2020 
2) Condemned Properties Narrative 
3) Pictures 
4) State Statutes 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Please see attached motion.  



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                     Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2770                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

From the desk of: 
George Howe  

Email:  ghowe@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Tom King, City Clerk 
Chelsea Stratton  

DATE: August 12, 2020 

RE:  Recommendations on Dangerous Buildings   

  
 

Based upon the evidence presented and the testimony of the Code Enforcement Officer concerning the 
condition(s) of the premise(s) owned by Fernand Martin located at 23 Turner Street, 25 Turner Street, 14 
Park Street and 227 State Street, and Walter Gogan located at 74 Exchange Street, I hereby by move: 
 

• That the Council adjudge these properties to be a nuisance and dangerous to life or property; 
 

• That the Council make and record an Order stating that the owner shall, within (30) days of 
service of this Order, abate all conditions creating a nuisance or dangerous condition to the 
satisfaction of the Code Enforcement Officer; 

 
• That should the owner fail to comply with the specified time, the owner shall be assessed a civil 

penalty of $100.00 per day and the City Council further directs the City Manager to cause the 
structure(s) to be demolished and removed.  The cost of such demolition and removal shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure sets and shall constitute a lien on such 
real estate. 

 
 
 

   

Motion made by: _______________________________  Seconded by: _____________________________ 

mailto:ghowe@presqueisleme.us










































23 Turner Street  

 

   

   

 

 

 

 



23 Turner Street  

  

  



25 Turner Street 

  

 

  



14 Park Street 

   

 

   

 

 

 

 



14 Park Street 

  

 

 



227 State Street 

   

   

   

 

 

 



227 State Street 

  



74 Exchange Street 

   

 

   







PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 3 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2020 Minutes 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) August 5, 2020 Minutes 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to approve minutes from August 5, 2020. 



Presque Isle City Council Meeting 
 

August 5, 2020 
6:00 PM 

Presque Isle City Council Chambers 
 
 

Call to Order – Roll Call 
 
 
Present: Chairman K. Freeman, Deputy Chairman M. Chasse, Councilors C. Green, J. 
Shaw, and J. Willette. 
 
Absent: Councilors D. Cyr and R. Smith. 
 
City Manager Martin Puckett and City Clerk Thomas King were also present. 
 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairman K. Freeman called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and led those present in 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 
Citizen Comments 

 
There were no Citizen Comments. 
 

Public Hearing 
 

1. Approval for a Marijuana License to Steve and April Rusnack, d/b/a Full Bloom 
Cannabis with a location of 483 Main Street (Single Hearing) 

 
Chairman K. Freeman opened the Public Hearing at 6:01 PM. The Rusnacks introduced 
themselves to the Council and attendees and spoke briefly about their pending business 
venture. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor J. Willette, seconded by Councilor C. Green to approve 
a Marijuana License to Steve and April Rusnack, d/b/a Full Bloom Cannabis with a 
location of 483 Main Street. 
 

Vote: 5 – 0  
 



Page 2 of 5 

Councilor D. Cyr arrived at 6:03 PM. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

2. Approve Minutes from July 1, 2020 
 
3. Approve 2020 Warrants #25 - #29 totaling $2,048,649.53 

 
4. Approve Appointment to the Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization Committee 

 
5. Approve Return of Votes Cast for Primary and Referendum election held on July 14, 

2020 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by C. Green, seconded by Councilor J. Shaw to approve the Consent 
Agenda (with one edit of the July 1, 2020 Minutes) in its entirety. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

 
Old Business 

 
6. City Hall Update 
 
Discussion only. City Manager Puckett updated the Council on the progress of the City 
Hall Project. Deputy Chairman M. Chasse also spoke about the project, emphasizing a 
control of the project budget and maximizing project efficiency. 

 
New Business 

 
7. Annual Tax Commitment 
 
Assessor Lewis Cousins presented his assessment of the options available to the 
Council and explained that though municipal valuation is up overall, the increase in 
Homestead Exemption has removed some of the taxable valuation. The options are a 
mil rate of between 0.02522 and 0.02540, depending on the Overlay the Council desires. 
 
Councilors discussed various options, holding fast to the idea that raising the mil rate is 
not what they care to do. City Manager Puckett presented some current year spending 
reductions which would help lower the mil rate. 
 



Page 3 of 5 

BE IT RESOLVED by Deputy Chairman M. Chasse, seconded by Councilor J. Willette 
to approve the 2020 Budget Adjustments as presented above (see Addendum #1) which 
will decrease the Municipal Appropriation (Expenses) from $14,451,011 to $14,251,011. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
the City Council authorize the Tax Collector to collect payments of year 2020 taxes in 
advance. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
the Tax Commitment Date for 2020 is August 05, 2020.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
the 2020 taxes are due and payable on August 05, 2020. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
interest to be paid by the City of Presque Isle shall be at the rate of 3.00 percent per 
annum on reimbursements due to overpayment (abatement) of taxes. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
interest on unpaid taxes shall be at the rate of 7.00 percent per annum. Interest on 
unpaid taxes will begin to accrue on October 15, 2020. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
abatements shall be appropriated from the 2020 overlay. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Chairman K. Freeman that 
the mill rate for 2020 to be assessed against all taxable real and personal property shall 
be 0.02495 mils.  
 

Vote: 5 – 1  
Councilor C. Green against. 

 
8. Downtown TIF District 
 
Economic and Community Development Director G. Weibley presented the Council 
with a draft plan of the proposed Downtown TIF. 
 
9. EV Charging Station 
 
Economic and Community Development Director G. Weibley presented the Council 
with a potential donation of an EV Charging Station for Presque Isle. A potential site for 



Page 4 of 5 

the charging station(s) is by the Farmer’s Market Pavilion. There will be further 
discussion at a future meeting of the Council. 
 

Manager’s Report 
City Manager Puckett reports that the Council will need to set a date for a Public 
Hearing to make minor yet necessary changes to the Marijuana Ordinance at the next 
meeting. 
 
City Manager Puckett also commended the recreation opportunities being supported by 
the Park and Rec Department despite the challenges Covid-19 has presented. 

 
 

Announcements 
 

The next regular meeting of the Presque Isle City council will be held September 2, 2020 
at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at Presque Isle City Hall. 

 
Executive Session 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Deputy Chairman M. Chasse 
to enter into Executive Session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss a 
Negotiations matter. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

Councilors exited Executive Session at 7:30 PM. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Deputy Chairman M. Chasse, seconded by Councilor J. Willette 
to award the Hangar contract to PMN Construction with bond. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green, seconded by Councilor J. Willette to enter 
into Executive Session at 7:33 PM pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss a 
Negotiations matter. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

Councilors exited Executive Session at 8:17 PM. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor J. Willette to 
allocate up to $20,000 for yellow paper assessment of properties. 
 



Page 5 of 5 

Vote: 6 – 0 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor C. Green to enter 
into Executive Session at 8:17 PM pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss a 
Negotiations matter. 
 

Vote: 6 – 0  
 

Councilors exited Executive Session at 8:39 PM. Deputy Chairman M. Chasse had exited 
the meeting prior to the end of this session. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor C. Green to accept 
a proposal to grant 60’ of property to the lot at 64 Chapman Road in receipt of work 
performed at the recreation fields. 
 

Vote: 5 - 0 
 

 
Adjournment 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor C. Green to 
Adjourn the meeting at 8:39 PM. 

Vote 5 – 0  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attested by:  ________________________________ 
     Thomas C. King, City Clerk 







PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM # 4 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 2020 Warrants #30 - #33, totaling 

$ 1,656,444.03 
 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

 
1) Warrant #30 $ 99,525.55 
2) Warrant #31 $ 540,173.74 
3) Warrant #32 $ 931,800.62 
4) Warrant #33 $ 84,944.12 

  

 
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor  , seconded by 
Councilor _   
totaling $ 1,656,444.03. 

to approve 2020 Warrant #30 - #33, 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 5 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Approve Transfer Deed 
 

INFORMATION 
 

 Information provided at meeting. 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to authorize the City Manager to transfer the deed. 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Approve Appointment to Planning 
Board 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memo from Galen Weibley, dated August 20, 2020 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to appoint Jayne Farrin to the Presque Isle Planning 
Board (expires 12/31/2021). 

















PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

SUBJECT 
 

OLD BUSINESS: City Hall Update 
 

INFORMATION 
 

 Information will be provided at the meeting verbally. 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Discussion only. 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

SUBJECT 
 

OLD BUSINESS: Downtown TIF District 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memo from Galen Weibley, dated August 20, 2020 
2) Downtown Redevelopment Project List 
3) Draft Downtown TIF 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to schedule a public hearing on October 7, 2020 for 
Downtown TIF and Downtown Redevelopment Plan. 





























































































PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Traffic Concerns 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memo from Martin Puckett, dated August 27, 2020 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Discussion only.  



 
 

 
 

The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: August 27, 2020 

RE:  Traffic Concerns 
 
Over the past few months there has been an increase in traffic concerns raised by the 
public, so a working group was formed to discuss solutions. 
 
Complainants from the public pertain to a variety of locations throughout the city, but 
all are in residential areas.  The primary complaint has been related to speeding, 
followed by large truck traffic. Areas where most complaints originate from are 
Academy, State, Chapman and Washburn roads. 
 
We have taken the following steps to date to address traffic complaints: 
 
Brush Removal: Public Works has routinely been removing brush, trees, etc. that have obscured 
signage.  This is an ongoing project. 
 
Signage/Road Markings:  In certain locations the largest DOT signs have been installed to warn 
motorists of speed reductions and limits.  Reduced speed signs have also been installed.  Painting 
was delayed due to COVID, still more to be done. 
 
Electronic Speed Signs:  The PIPD has battery powered signage to indicate motorist’s current 
speed.  
 
Data Collection devices:  The PIPD has on loan a device to collect data in different areas in the 
city to identify area requiring enforcement. 
 
Enforcement: PIPD has been doing regular speed details and doing programs that are 
state/federal initiatives such as seat belt checks and mobile device usage. 
 
Changing the behavior of drivers will have to be an ongoing effort and not just an 
isolated effort, to be effective. 
 
The truck traffic is a more complicated issue to address.  Academy and Second St. are 
State aid roads which limit the City’s ability to restrict traffic.  Discussions with MDOT 



 
 

 
 

have been helpful.  Below are possible solutions to reduce the truck traffic on 
Academy/Second Street: 

• Classification Study: different than a traffic count; vehicle types are identified.  Collect 
data to identify volume and establish truck numbers.   

• Public Awareness Campaign: Use Social media, news outlets, and press releases to 
promote use of bypass. 

• Direct Contact: outreach to businesses that have a high volume of truck traffic to use 
bypass rather than Academy for East/West traffic. 

• Signage: Place signage along East/West corridor to direct traffic to bypass.   



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Greenmark IT – Technology Updates 
 

INFORMATION 
 

 Information provided during presentation. 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Motions provided at meeting.  



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Schedule a Public Hearing for changes to 
Chapter 59A – Adult Use and Medical Marijuana Businesses 

Ordinance 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memo from Galen Weibley, dated September 2, 
2020 

2) Ordinance 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor             , seconded by Councilor                  
              to schedule a public hearing on October 7, 2020 for 
changes to Chapter 59A – Adult Use and Medical 
Marijuana Ordinance. 















































PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Five Year Fee Schedule 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memo from Brad Turner, dated August 26, 2020 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
Discussion only.  



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207.760.2717                    Fax 207.764.2501           
 

Finance Department 
From the desk of: 
Bradley Turner 

Email:  bturner@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Presque Isle City Council 
FROM: Management Team 
DATE: August 26, 2020 
RE:  5 Year Forecast and Underlying Assumptions 

 
Attached is the Management Team’s proposed Five-Year Fee Schedule. Following are the 
underlying assumptions used in determining those proposed fees. 
 
Airport – All Fees except for the Landing Fee for the airline either cover or more than cover 
the costs associated with the service provided.  All other Fees except for the Taxi Fee are 
determined by comparing the Fees charged at other airports.  The Taxi Fee has been 
increased at a COLA since the current Director was employed. 
 
Fire Department --The department charges a fee for structure fires of $500.  Most insurance 
companies have this built into the home owner’s policy.  We bill the insurance company; if 
they do not pay we write the bill off. We never go to the homeowner for payment. 
 
The department bills businesses for false alarms after the 3rd false alarm in a calendar year.  
The fee encourages businesses to service and maintain their systems.  The amount charged 
is being reduced to reflect what other communities are currently charging.  
 
The department charges $25 for fire reports, usually requested by the insurance company.  
Charge covers time and expenses. 
 
Burn permits were initially issued as a method for the Fire Department to trouble shoot calls 
to the Fire Stations reporting a suspected fire.  It’s much less expensive to see if a permit was 
issued in the area and make a telephone call than to send out the Fire Truck.  Several years 
ago a small fee began to be charged as an additional source of revenue.  Beginning in 2018 
a similar fee is being charged for fireworks permits.   
 
For SCBA fills and top-offs (air bottles) the Fee charged is about all the market will bear, but 
does off-set some of the cost of maintaining the air compression system.  

 
Code Enforcement—Zoning Board of Appeals Fee covers the administrative costs including 
the required legal notice and the requirement by the Land Use of Development Code to notify 
all abutting property owners by Certified Mail. 
 



All Permit fees are similar to the fees charged by other communities in the area and State.  
The charge is meant to help cover the cost of inspections. 
 
Finance Department – Many of the Fees charged in the Tax and City Clerk’s Offices are set 
by the state.  Most of the other services are simply extensions of their current jobs and are 
meant to pay for the time and supplies used to provide that service by the clerk.   
 
In the case of Genealogy Research, due to privacy issues, the public can no longer do this 
research on their own.  The price charged is a compromise between providing a service to 
the public and recouping some of the cost of the Clerk’s time.    
 
Library – Most of the services offered are self-serve, therefore the fee is meant to cover the 
cost of the supplies used.  For non-residents, any student enrolled in MSAD #1 are exempt 
from fees.  To calculate a reasonable fee for other non-residents we calculated the cost of the 
library to the average taxpayer, and adjusted that to what we think the market would bear. 
The fees for passports are set by the State Department and the fingerprinting fees are 
determined by the government as we have no jurisdiction over changing them.   
 
Police Department     
Concerning the Accident Reports: 

• Use of Buycrash.com imposes no cost to the City/PD, therefore the fee more than 
pays for the services rendered.  The cost is almost always incurred by the involved 
parties insurance company(s) and since accident reports are, except in rare instances, 
generated exclusively for insurance purposes, it is reasonable for the City to recover 
costs for generating the report. 

• Not everyone has access to a computer so the PD permits walk-ins to request an 
accident report.  Pricing is set so as to encourage use of the website rather than 
tasking personnel to devote time to handling these records requests.  Pricing is 
consistent with previous years.   

 
Concerning Bank Alarms: 
PIPD has so few false bank alarms that this category is almost obsolete, however in the 
event of a false alarm, the set amount covers the cost of the PIPD’s response and adequately 
provides incentive for banks to properly train their personnel on the alarm usage at their 
branches keeping these incidents low in number.  
 
Concerning Public Records Requests: 
The PIPDI declines to charge victims of crime for a copy of the police report relative to their 
victimization; all others are billed identical to the walk-in accident reports listed above with the 
exception of requests which are time intensive to fulfill.  For instance, we get requests for 
audio & video recordings where specific dates, times, or both are unknown to the requester.  
This then requires staff to research, often times voluminous amounts of information, in order 
to satisfy the public records request.  Under circumstances such as this, the PIPD and the 
person making the request will agree on an estimated amount of time necessary to fulfill the 
request and the requester will be billed at the listed hourly rate.  If items such as CD’s or 
DVD’s are necessary, the PIPD further requests those items to be delivered to the PD for use 
in providing the requested documentation.   
 



Recreation and Parks most of these fees have been adjusted to reflect changes in services 
and costs since the Sargent Community Center has been completed. Program fees and labor 
services have been adjusted to account for the minimum wage increases. 



AIRPORT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

SERVICE

Landing Fees $1.75 $1.80 $1.85 $1.85 $1.90
(per 1,000 lb. MLW)

Landing Fees $915.00 $1,521.00 $1,521.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00
(per Landing)
For Airline ERJ-145only

Airport Parking Fee $7.00 $8.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00
Bangor - $10/day
Portland - $12/day
Fredericton, NB - $12/day Can. $9.18/day US
Moncton, NB - $16/day Can. $12.24/day US

Fuel Flow Fee $0.06 $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.08
($/gallon)

Taxi Fee $475.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $525.00



FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

Fire Department 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

SERVICE

* False Alarms 175.00$   200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   200.00$   

** Structure Fires 500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   

** Extrication/Jaws 575.00$   575.00$   575.00$   575.00$   575.00$   

Fire Reports 25.00$     25.00$     25.00$     25.00$     25.00$     

SCBA Fills 7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       

SCBA Top Off 5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       

Scuba Tank Fills 7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       7.00$       

Scuba Tank Top Off 5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       5.00$       

Burn Permits 10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     

10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     10.00$     
* False Alarms -- Businesses are allowed three (3) false alarms per calendar year.

After 3 they will be billed for each additional call.

** Extrication/Jaws and Structure fire fee's are billed to the insurance company.
Home-owners are not responsible for payment if the insurance company refuses payment.

Fireworks Permits



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Code Enforcement

Zoning Board $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 100.00$   

Building Permit Minimum Fee $35.00 $35.00 35.00$     $35.00 35.00$     
Additional Fee Residential -- $5.00 per thousand of Construction Cost
Additional Fee Commerical -- $8.00 per thousand of Construction Cost

Demolition
Residential Fee $30.00 $30.00 30.00$     $30.00 30.00$     
Commercial Fee $100.00 $100.00 100.00$   $100.00 100.00$   

Electrical -- Minimum Fee $50.00 $50.00 50.00$     $50.00 50.00$     

Internal Plumbing and Septic is Regulated by the State of Maine

Certificate of Occupancy $25.00 $25.00 25.00$     $25.00 25.00$     

Sign Fee $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 2.50$       
(per square foot)



FINANCE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

City Clerk/Tax Office Fees 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Uncertified Vital Records: $7.00 $8.00 $8.00 $9.00 $9.00
Any additional copies at time of request $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $5.00 $5.00

Notary Service
First signature: $9.00 $10.00 $10.00 $11.00 $11.00
Second Signature (Page) $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00
Third Signature (Page) $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00

$15.00 $20.00 $20.00 $25.00 $25.00

Marriages (performed at City Hall $100.00 $105.00 $110.00 $125.00 $125.00
  during regular hours)

Photocopies
8.5" x 11" $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
8.5" x 14" $0.65 $0.65 $0.65 $0.65 $0.65
11" x 14" $0.75 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75
Tax Maps $0.30 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

Lamination
1/4 sheet: $2.00 $5.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00
1/2 sheet: $4.00 $4.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00
Full sheet: $8.00 $8.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00

* * * Would like to see this removed. - Tom
Voter Registration Lists -- Limited to qualified 

Political Party by request only: 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year 1 free/year
1st Page $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Additional Pages $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25
CD/Disc $22.00 $22.00 $22.00 $22.00 $22.00

*** (Set by the State)
Fax Fee

1st Page $5.00 $5.00 $6.00 $6.00 $7.00
Add'l Pages $8.00 $8.00 $9.00 $9.00 $10.00

Research:
Lien Releases/Deeds/Title Related Documents

Per page $10.00 $10.00 $12.00 $15.00 $15.00
Vital Records

1st 15 minutes free
Per record (half hour increments) $5.00 $6.00 $7.00 $7.00 $8.00

Genealogy Research
1st half hour free
Additional time in half hour increments $20.00 $20.00 $25.00 $25.00 $30.00

Trio Tax Service Extract $55.00 $55.00 $60.00 $60.00 $65.00

Verification Fee to Veternary Office

Dedimus Justice Service



FINANCE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

Per Dog $5.00 $5.00 $7.00 $8.00 $8.00

$100.00 $105.00 $110.00 $115.00 $120.00
(This will come closer to covering publication fees)

Public Hearing Fee

Also, City Ordinance, Chapter 9 needs to be updated to reflect an increase in publication fees.



TURNER MEMORIAL LIBRARY
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Overdue Books and CD's $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.00 $0.00
(Per Day)

DVD/VHS Overdue Fine $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $0.00 $0.00

Fax Service
(Incoming and sending per page) $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00

Computer Printing $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.25
(Per Page)

Research Services (consistent with City fee $30.00 $30.00 $40.00 $50.00 $50.00

Inter-Library Loan $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
(To help defray return postal costs,
 flat fee per request)

Non-Resident Borrowers Membership
* Annual Family Membership:  $55.00 (price effective 1/1/2017)
* Annual Individual Membership:  $46.00.
* 3-Month Individual Membership:  $12.00.

* Fee is waived for University of Presque Isle and Northern Maine Community College students
with valid, durrent university or community college issued I.D.

* Fee is waived for students enrolled or eligible for enrollment in S.A.D. #1 schools.

Conference Room $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs

Meeting Rooms Varies according to room. 
Conference Room Gallery (Capacity - 82) $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs $100/3 hrs
Teen Lounge Conf. Room (Capicity 5-6) $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs
Reference Area (Capacity - 15) $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs $50/3 hrs
Mezzanine Meeting Room (Capicity 4-5) $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs $20/3 hrs

* Reduced rates for Not-For-Profit Organizations. 

Replacement for Lost or Stolen Card $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00

Home Delivery Charge (per delivery) $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00

Speaker's Fee or Honorarium $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00



TURNER MEMORIAL LIBRARY
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

Color Copies:
Single Copies $0.80 $0.80 $0.80 $0.80 $0.80
10 - 49 Copies $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70 $0.70
50-99 Copies $0.60 $0.60 $0.60 $0.60 $0.60
100+ Copies $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50

Single Copies $1.70 $1.70 $1.70 $1.70 $1.70
10 - 49 Copies $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50
50-99 Copies $1.30 $1.30 $1.30 $1.30 $1.30
100+ Copies $1.20 $1.20 $1.20 $1.20 $1.20

Black Copies:
Single Copies $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20
10 - 49 Copies $0.15 $0.15 $0.15 $0.15 $0.15
50-99 Copies $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10
100+ Copies $0.05 $0.05 $0.05 $0.05 $0.05

Single Copies $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
10 - 49 Copies $0.30 $0.30 $0.30 $0.30 $0.30
50-99 Copies $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20
100+ Copies $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10 $0.10

11 X 17

Letter & Legal

Letter & Legal

11 X 17



POLICE DEPARTMENT
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

SERVICE

Accident Reports
$20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

Requests made through PIPD
***Single Page*** $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00

***Per page thereafter*** $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

5 - 15 (Each) $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00
Over 15 (Each) $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Public Records Requests:
Police Report -- Victim Copy Free Free Free Free Free
Police Report -- Non- Victim Copy First 3 pages $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00 $13.00
Per page thereafter $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00

$25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00

or copies, substantial research and/or time to
complete shall be billed at the following
hourly rate in addition to the police report
and subsequent "per page" costs.
***These costs to be agreed upon prior to work commencing***

Bank Alarms:  (false)

     Buycrash.com

(Typical accident is 3 pages or $21.00)

DVDs, thumb drives, other recording media,
Requests requiring digital media recordings,



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Programs Resident/Non-Resident $25/$75 $25/$75 $30/$80 $30/$80 $35/$85

Sargent Family Community Center
Facility Profit/Non-Profit

1/2 Gym per hour $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23 $30/$23
Full Gym per hour $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38 $50/$38
Gym & Track per hour $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56 $75/$56
Multi-Purpose Room

1st two hours $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30
each additional hour $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15

Senior Center & Kitchen
1st hour $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30 $50/$30
each additional hour $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15 $25/$15

Staffing/Labor
Laborers $40 $40 $40 $40 $45
Attendants $22 $22 $22 $22 $25

Equipment
Chairs (folding) each per day $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50
Tables each per day $10 $10 $10 $10 $10
Pipe & Drape Partitions $2.00 per foot $2.00 per foot $2.00 per foot $2.00 per foot $2.00 per foot
Floor Cover

50' x 70' per day $350 $350 $350 $350 $350
90' x 130' per day $550 $550 $550 $550 $550

Scoreboard $50 $50 $50 $50 $50
Volleyball Standards $50 $50 $50 $50 $50
Gym Mats per mat $10 $10 $10 $10 $10
Soft Play Equipment per piece $5 $5 $5 $5 $5

Mantle Lake Park Kitchen Pavilion
1st three hours $75 $75 $75 $75 $75
each additional hour $20 $20 $20 $20 $20

The Forum
Facility

Facility Rental per day $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
Facility Fee 12% 12% 12% 12% 12%
Advertising

3' x 4' Annual $200 $250 $250 $250 $250
4' x 8' Annual $350 $400 $400 $400 $400
Hockey Boards $600 $600 $600 $600 $600
Zamboni $700 $700 $700 $700 $700

Box Office per week $400 $400 $400 $400 $400



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
The Forum

Staffing/Labor
Maintenance per hour $40 $40 $40 $40 $45
Janitorial per hour $30 $30 $30 $30 $35
Ticket Sellers/Takers per hour $22 $22 $22 $22 $25
Parking Lot Attendants per hour $22 $22 $22 $22 $25
Ushers/Usherettes per hour $22 $22 $22 $22 $25
House Security per hour $40 $40 $40 $40 $45
Spot Light Operators per hour $40 $40 $40 $40 $45
Stage Hands per hour $40 $40 $40 $40 $45
Electrician per hour weekdays $75 $75 $75 $75 $85
Electrician per hour weekends $90 $90 $90 $90 $110

Equipment
Chairs (folding) each per day $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50
Tables (5' or 8') each per day $8 $8 $8 $8 $8
Pipe & Drape Partitions $1.50 per foot $1.50 per foot $1.50 per foot $1.50 per foot $1.50 per foot
House PA System per day $220 $220 $220 $220 $220
Portable PA System per day $175 $175 $175 $175 $175
Stage (Small) per day $300 $300 $300 $300 $300
Stage (Large) per day $600 $600 $600 $600 $600
Sound Wings per day $150 $150 $150 $150 $150
Canopy per day $150 $150 $150 $150 $150
Spot Platforms per day

5x8x5 $55 $55 $55 $55 $55
8x8x5 $60 $60 $60 $60 $60
5x8x10 $90 $90 $90 $90 $90
8x8x10 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100
8x8x15 $150 $150 $150 $150 $150

Forklift w/operator per hour $150 $150 $150 $150 $150
Scissor Lift w/operator per hour $150 $150 $150 $150 $150
Trailer Hookup per unit per day $24 $24 $24 $24 $30

Ice Season
Ice Rates per hour

Hours 1-100 $155 $155 $175 $175 $175
Hours 101-200 $135 $135 $155 $155 $155
Hours >200 $115 $115 $135 $135 $135
Off peak $100 $100 $120 $120 $120

Public Skating
Adult $5 $5 $5 $5 $5
Child $3 $3 $3 $3 $3
Senior $3 $3 $3 $3 $3

Ice Skates
Rental $1 $1 $1 $1 $2
Sharpening $5 $7 $7 $7 $7



Presque Isle Recreation Parks
FIVE-YEAR FEE SCHEDULE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Riverside Pavilion

Per Day (In Season) $50 $50 $50 $50 $50
Per Week (Off Season) $50 $50 $50 $50 $50



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Capital Improvement Plan  
 

INFORMATION 
 

 Information provided at meeting. 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
 
Discussion only.  



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

SUBJECT 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to 
discuss Negotiations 

  
INFORMATION 

 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to enter into Executive Session pursuant 
to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss Negotiations matter. 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

SUBJECT 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to 
discuss Negotiations 

  
INFORMATION 

 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to enter into Executive Session pursuant 
to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss Negotiations matter. 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

September 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM # EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

SUBJECT 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to 
discuss Real Estate  

  
INFORMATION 

 
  

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _________, seconded by 
Councilor __________ to enter into Executive Session pursuant 
to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(C) to discuss Real Estate matter. 



 
 

PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 

  
• We still have Board/Committee openings if anyone has any 

interest in joining a Board or Committee please see the City 
Clerk or apply online. 

• The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Presque Isle 
City Council is on Wednesday, October 7, 2020 at 6:00 PM in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
 


	September 2, 2020 Council Packet
	September 2, 2020 Agenda
	September 2 2020 cover memo
	Agenda Item 1
	Council MEMO for MJ cultivation
	Chad Junkins Application
	September 2, 2020 Council Packet.pdf
	Presque Isle - Chad Junkins  - SH Aug 26
	Agenda Item 2
	Motion.Council.Dangerous Bldgs. 9-2-20
	Narrative for Dangerous Properties
	2642_001
	2642_014

	Pictures
	23 Turner Street
	25 Turner Street
	14 Park Street
	227 State Street
	74 Exchange Street

	State Statutes
	Agenda Item 3
	CC 8-5-2020
	CC 8-5-2020
	8-5-2020 - Budget Adjustments
	Tax Rate Calculation Form - 2020

	Agenda Item 4
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 4
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	Agenda Item 5
	Agenda Item 6
	PB APPOINTMENT 9.2.20_001
	Agenda Item 7
	Agenda Item 8
	Downtown TIF & Project List Info
	TIF PROJECT LIST & DRP 9_001
	TIF PROJECT LIST & DRP 9_026

	Agenda Item 9
	Memo Traffic 8.27.20
	Agenda Item 10
	Agenda Item 11
	Memo
	Marijuana Ordinance
	Agenda Item 12
	Five Year Fee Schedule 2020 Final
	Updated Memo 2020
	Airport 5 year fee schedule
	Airport

	Copy of Fire Five year fee schedule
	Fire

	Copy of Code Five Year Fee Schedule- 2020-2024
	Code

	City Clerk - Finance 5 Year Fee Schedule
	City Clerk-Finance

	Library five year fee schedule
	 Library 

	5-year fee schedule Police
	Police

	Copy of Copy of Rec  Parks 5 year fee schedule
	Rec and Parks


	Agenda Item 13
	Executive Session 1
	Executive Session 2
	Executive Session 3
	Annoucements



